City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SCL 2358
Addendum 

Updated on 11/12/2009

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal # 2358 titled ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE released on 10/07/2009.  The due date and time for responses has changed to 3:00PM, 12/21/2009 (Pacific) and deadline for questions have been extended to 12/10/09.  This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders/proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	10/08/09
	10/08/2009
	Could you clarify the date of the Mandatory Pre-Proposal Conference? Page 50, Section 4.2 indicates that the conference will be held on Tuesday, October 26, 2009.

October 26 is a Monday so could you please clarify whether the conference is on Monday or Tuesday?


	The correct date is Monday, October 26.
	

	2
	10/12/09
	10/19/09
	Regarding Meter Location and Pole Location Data – to accurately scope and size the communications infrastructure it is very useful to have complete meter location and pole location data such as:

Meter Information—request for meter location information to determine relative densities and distribution of the meters and/or homes in the service territory. 

Summary of information needed on a meter by meter basis:

Street Address

5 digit Zip Code

4 digit Zip Extension

Meter Coordinates

Route ID with Cycle ID

Meter Location (Indoor/Outdoor)

Meter Reading or Location Instructions/Codes, if applicable

Meter Accessible? Yes/No

Meter ID

Meter Service Type (electric, gas)

Meter Classification (residential, commercial, and industrial)

Meter Form Factor (2s, 12s, etc)

Meter Size (voltage for electric, capacity for gas)

Meter Class  (10, 100, 20, 200)

Transformer

Circuit

Substation

 Will we have access to such data for response purposes?


	Seattle City Light is not prepared to provide detailed information regarding specific: customer and/or service address information; meter coordinates; meter route and cycle; meter location instruction codes, accessibility information, meter ID; or transformer, circuits to vendors to use as part of their AMI RFP response. We understand and agree the information requested will ultimately be necessary for the successful vendor to deploy AMI communication and Smart Meters. 

Meter Service Type: Seattle City Light is a municipal electric company and AMI sponsored by the utility involves only electric meters.

Meter Classification: Seattle City Light intends to deploy AMI to all of its residential, commercial and industrial customers, approximately 405,000 meters to 387,715 customers described in Table 1-1 on page 2 of the AMI RFP.

Meter Form Factor/Meter Voltage: Table 1-2 on page 4 of the AMI RFP describes Seattle City Light’s meter population by type and form as of July 2009. 

Meter Cycle ID/Meter Route ID: Seattle City Light has 63 cycles—cycles 1-42 support bi-monthly billing for the majority of residential and small commercial customers; cycles 43-62 support monthly billing for medium and large commercial customers, including industrial customers, and for all residential and commercial customers supported by the network distribution area in the downtown core of Seattle. This information is contained in our billing (Banner/Indus), meter reading (Itron P+4), Itron MV-90 software, and CLAMS (home-grown meter inventory data base). This information will be made available to the successful vendor for deployment of AMI communication and Smart Meters.

Meter Location, Meter Reading or Location Instruction/Codes: This information is primarily located in our Itron P+4 application and will be made available to the successful vendor for deployment of Ami communication and Smart Meters.


	

	3
	10/14/09
	10/19/09
	Would the City consider extending the RFP due date by two weeks?
	No, the City does not intend to extend the RFP due date at this time.
	

	4
	10/14/09
	10/19/09
	Please provide the names of the manufacturers of your embedded base of meters


	Names of the manufacturers of your embedded base of meters:

In the 3-phase meter population, City Light principally uses GE (General Electric) electro-mechanical and electronic meters, and some ABB electronic meters. In the single-phase residential meter population, we use largely electro-mechanical GE, ABB/Westinghouse, Sangamo/Schlumberger/Itron, Duncan/Landis+Gyr meters. 


	

	5
	10/14/09
	10/19/09
	If you already have any AMR, please describe capabilities


	Current AMR: Seattle City Light has not deployed AMR. There are approximately 300 residential and commercial meters currently read via Itron P+4 RF-probe, and about 100 remaining AMR meters deployed as part of a small pilot. These meters will be replaced with AMI Smart meters.


	

	6
	10/14/09
	10/19/09
	Please provide the name of current EMS and SCADA vendor and RTU vendor


	Name(s) of current EMS, SCADA , and RTU vendors:
EMS: Siemens

RTUs: Landis+Gyr

Communication Protocol: Landis+Gyr

Note: Both EMS and RTUs are planned to be replaced in the future, specific date to be determined


	

	7
	10/14/09
	10/19/09
	Please provide the name of current vendors for distribution transformers, cap banks, re-closers, etc


	Names of current vendors for distribution transformers, cap banks, re-closers, etc:

Here is the list of distribution transformer vendors of all transformers in City Light system:

ABB; ASEA BRN BOVERI XFORMR (ABB); ACUTRAN DRY TRANSFORMERS; ALLIS-CHALMERS TRANSFORMERS; BRITISH COLUMBIA TRANSFORMER; CARTE TRANSFORERS; CENTRAL/MOLONEY TRANSFORMSERS; CENTRAL TRANSFORMERS; CUTLER-HAMMER/EATON; DOWZER ELECT TRANSFORMERS; DYNALECTRON TRANSFORMERS; EASTERN ELEC TRANSFORMERS; EB NATIONAL TRANSFORMERS; ELIN AMERICA TRANSFORMERS; ENGLISH ELEC TRANSFORMERS; ERMCO TRANSFORMERS; FEDERAL PIONEER TRANSFORMERS; FEDERAL PACIFIC TRANSFORMERS; GARDNER TRANSFORMERS; GENERAL ELECTRIC; HEVI-DUTY/SOLA ELEC XFRMRS; HILL TRANSFORMERS; HITACHI ELECT EQUIP; HOWARD IND TRANSFORMERS; JEFFERSON ELECT DRY XFRMRS; KUHLMAN TRANSFORMERS


	

	8
	10/14/09
	10/19/09
	Please provide list of current vendors for ERP platform, OMS, CIS


	List of current vendors for ERP platform, OMS, CIS:

ERP – Oracle Peoplesoft financials V8.48, ADP (Advance Data Processing) Human Resources Information Systems Enterprise V3

OMS – Home grown, but moving to Oracle Network Management System (QTR 3 2010 implementation)

CIS – Ventyx Customer Information System v3.2 (Referred to Banner and/or CCSS on Seattle City Light technology figures and tables in RFP)


	

	9
	10/19/09
	10/19/09
	Regarding Domestic Partnership:  Pages 55-57 of the RFP details their requirements.  Number 7 on page 57 states that we could be compliant with this by offering equal benefits to only those employees in Seattle office locations and in those offices.  

Our company does agree to provide the domestic partner benefits as required by King County but only to residents of King County.  You will need to make sure that the services provided are generally only provided by King County residents.  By generally I mean all major or continuing services.
Please let us know if our  position on Domestic Partnership meets the stipulation for City of Seattle and Seattle City Light


	No. The EB provision extends to all locations where the contract work is being performed on the City of Seattle contract.  You can refer to the Contractors with Multiple Locations chart if that’s the issue: http://www.seattle.gov/contracting/docs/ebLocationChart_20091019.pdf  

If a company has offices outside of King County where the contract work is being performed – then EB extends to those office locations, too.


	

	10
	10/19/09
	10/19/09
	We need to determine if the City of Seattle has requested monies from Federal ARRA programs i.e. (Broadband Technology Opportunities Programs)?  

	The City of Seattle and Seattle City Light have submitted a grant for ARRA funds to the Department of Energy for the Smart Grid Investment Grant Program (SGIG, DE-FOA-0000058) authorized by Section 1306 of the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007 and later modified by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The Department of Energy has not awarded grant monies to the City of Seattle at this time but the City is still in contention to receive funds. 
	

	11
	10/19/09
	10/21/09
	Regarding 5.10 Submittal Checklist, is the 10 page count limitation for Forms 5.3 through 5.8 inclusive or exclusive of the page count for the spreadsheet?

For example Form 5.3 is 7 pages long, could the proposing vendor then add only 3 pages to the total page count or will the proposing vendor be considered compliant if they include an additional 10 pages or less to the spreadsheet?


	Vendors must conscribe to the format of response and provide a 10 page concise answer but they are encouraged to provide supporting documentation via appendix which the City can use to provide further clarification or explanation although we are only obligated to take the 10 pages of response into consideration. This ensures that the responses are direct and are not composed of material that may not directly respond to the question.


	

	12
	10/20/09
	10/21/09
	For wireless backhaul specifically: How much bandwidth is needed per endpoint per month?


	The specific bandwidth requirements will depend on proposed endpoints and applications. The communication speed to the endpoint and the amount of data per end point per month are not specified. The communication infrastructure has to be sufficient to support all types of endpoints and applications. If vendors have different options available they can propose several options. 


	

	13
	10/20/09
	10/21/09
	For wireless backhaul specifically: What type of IP addressing will be used?

	SCL will consider both IPv4 and IPv6 in vendor's proposals for IP communications to end points.


	

	14
	10/20/09
	10/21/09
	For wireless backhaul specifically: Does SCL expect a single invoice for all wireline and wireless services?


	SCL will consider all options. That includes paying single invoice, paying separate invoice for wire line or using SCL fiberoptic infrastructure as a wire line.


	

	15
	10/20/09
	10/21/09
	
	A mandatory pre-proposal conference is scheduled for 8:00 a.m. to noon, Tuesday, October 26, 2009, at the Puget Sound Regional Council Building, 1011 Western Ave Ste 500 , Seattle. Potential Vendors must send at least one representative; conference call-ins will be accepted.  Please RSVP to Jason.edens@seattle.gov with the Name, Title, and Function of the participants on the call. Failure to attend the pre-proposal conference will result in a vendor being disqualified from participating in the RFP.
Please note: the building is located between Spring and Madison on Western.  There is a (pay) parking lot in the building and also a Republic parking garage 1/2 block north of the building (also on Western.)  The boardroom is on the 5th floor, please check in at the Reception desk.


	Section 4.2 Mandatory Pre-proposal Conference (page 50)
A mandatory pre-proposal conference is scheduled for 8:00 a.m. to noon, Monday, October 26, 2009, at the Puget Sound Regional Council Building, 1011 Western Ave Ste 500, Seattle.

	16
	10/21/09
	10/22/09
	Can our company bid only on the C&I (commercial and industrial) portion of the Territory.  We have a perfect fit for your territory.  The history is that you have “urban” canyons and it will be a challenge looking at the RFP for proprietary systems to meet your needs.  We have really good coverage in your territory both CDMA and GPRS.

	The City reserves the right to name a partial and/or multiple awards, in the best interest of the City.   Vendors are to prepare proposals given the City’s right to a partial or multiple awards.  If Vendor is submitting an All or None offer, such offer must be clearly marked as All or None.  Further, the City may eliminate an individual line item when calculating award, in order to best meet the needs of the City, if a particular line item is not routinely available or is a cost that exceeds the City funds. 
As an operational consideration, a stand alone or non-integrated system is unlikely to receive strong consideration by the City.

	

	17
	10/21/09
	10/22/09
	Regarding Territory, we are looking for perimeter boundaries so they clearer define the service area that we are committing.

Boundaries here are the outlines of the map or in this case the service territory, how are they defined?

We need to know exactly how the 131 sq miles is defined.  We understand that it is the Seattle City limits and adjacent suburban city limits, but what are those city limits that are included (if that is how the boundary of the service territory is defined)?


	Boundaries of Seattle City Light Service Territory—

North: N 205th Street

East: Lake Washington

West: Puget Sound and Elliott Bay

South: starting from the west Sylvester Way to S 160th and then various streets. See Map


[image: image1.emf]North Map.pdf



[image: image2.emf]Southern Map.pdf


	

	18
	11/01/09
	11/12/09
	Would the City consider moving the due date of the proposals now that there is no longer a federal timeline behind the project?
	Yes. 
	See item#48.

	19
	11/09/09
	11/10/09
	Who would be responsible for warehousing of hardware / meters, etc.?
	The expectation is that the meter hardware installer would be responsible for securing/supplying a warehousing/staging area for meters.


	

	20
	10/22/09
	11/10/09
	From the requirement for the AMI vendor to host the meter data during the beginning of the system, does the City of Seattle prefer to have these new systems hosted by the AMI vendor, or installed in the city operation centers?


	Seattle City Light does not have a preference for location of the hosted MDM data by the vendor off-site or at SCL. We reserve the right to negotiate this with the successful AMI vendor as part of the AMI contract.


	

	21
	10/22/09
	11/10/09
	Could the city review their expectations and requirements for the End-to-End System Test in Phase II and the System Acceptance Test in PhaseIII.  Who is responsible for creating and completing any test plans that check the interface between the AMI system and Utility's  MDMS and other Utility back office systems?


	Test plans for the Phase II End-to-End System Test and the Phase III System Acceptance Test will be developed with the vendor and approved by Seattle City Light. Seattle City Light reserves the right to contract with separate third parties to participate in the development and conduct of the Phase II and Phase III tests at the direction of the utility.


	

	22
	10/22/09
	10/23/09
	To assist with network planning and future requirements of the

AMI network, does the City of Seattle have any information on the 

number of DA Devices that could be added to the system?  Are there any preliminary schedules on when DA functionality would be added to the system?


	 Seattle City Light has not yet finalized the DA schedule. Vendors may expect to initially support approximately 1,000 devices and up to 20,000 DA devices in the future. Devices will include, but not be limited to, Distribution Switch Controllers, Capacitor Bank Controllers and Distributed Sensors.


	

	23
	10/22/09
	11/11/09
	Has the city standardized on any communication or computer equipment that the AMI vendor should use for the AMI system hardware? Who is responsible for installing the AMI servers and connecting the servers to a customer provided power system?


	Seattle City Light has not yet standardized communication or computer equipment for AMI. Installation of AMI servers and connections to power sources are subject to negotiation between the utility and the successful AMI vendor as part of the AMI contract. 


	

	24
	10/22/09
	11/11/09
	As specified in section 1.1 of Seattle City Light’s RFP for an Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) solution, SCL is soliciting vender responses across an array of smart meter, head-end, and communications solutions.  The section further clarifies that bids involving multiple vendors need to clearly identify the “prime contractor vs. subcontractor” roles.  Will the City accept bid responses from non-traditional AMI providers likely in a subcontract role for public access cellular communications as part of the overall AMI / SmartGrid architecture?  In other words:  Please clarify that only vendors interested in bidding on the entire RFP are eligible to submit a Proposal. All others must team with a said vendor?


	As stated in Section 1.1 – Single Award, Seattle City Light is interested in selecting one vendor. That vendor can choose to partner with other vendors in their response to meet the requirements of the RFP. 


	

	25
	10/22/09
	11/10/09
	In order to confirm wireless cellular coverage, electronic geo-coded data of SCL’s meter base and distribution assets is preferred.  Does SCL have this data and willing to provide during the AMI bid process under NDA?


	It is not the intent of Seattle City Light to provide electronic geo-coded data of our meter base or distributions assets to vendors as part of the RFP process. It is the policy of the City of Seattle, and Seattle City Light to not sign NDA agreements.


	

	26
	10/22/09
	11/10/09
	Has the Department of Energy indicated to Seattle City Light whether wireless carriers providing AMI wireless connectivity for this project will be considered “vendors” or “sub-recipients” for purposes of reporting under the ARRA?

If the AMI and SmartGrid architecture utilize cellular communications for WAN data transport, is VPN connectivity required from nodal points to SCL’s enterprise WAN?


	Seattle City Light’s interpretation of the US DOE Smart Grid NOA published in June 2009, suggests there is no specific designation for a wireless carrier as a vendor vs. sub-recipient.


	

	27
	10/22/09
	11/10/09
	If the AMI and Smart Grid architecture utilize cellular communications for WAN data transport, is VPN connectivity required from nodal points to SCL’s enterprise WAN?


	Yes, Seattle City Light will provide SONET/fiber transport for data backhaul to head-ends, with our nodes based at substations.


	

	28
	10/22/09
	11/10/09
	As noted in section 4.10, under no circumstances shall the Vendor submit its own boilerplate of terms and conditions.  Please clarify that for 3rd party contracted services such as cellular wireless, separate T&Cs and wireless agreements as appropriate do apply and should be provided with any bid.
	The City of Seattle requires all proposed systems to submit any Terms and Conditions as proposed changes to the documents found in RFP SCL 2358 and not as proposer originated terms and conditions.
	

	29
	10/26/09 
	11/11/09
	How will Seattle City Light verify cyber-security?
	Seattle City Light proposes to contract with a third party “Black Hat” to partner on cyber-security issues throughout the process including, but not limited to, proposal evaluation, negotiation, and systems tests throughout to project.


	

	30
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Does Seattle City Light intend to purchase AMI system outright vs. lease vs. installment payments?


	In light of SCL’s failure to win Grant money, all financing options are being explored
	

	31
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	How is growth characterized for Seattle City Light’s service territory?
	Growth is characterized through increased density within the existing boundaries of Seattle City Light’s current service territory, anticipated as an increase of 1.5% annually for new meters.


	

	32
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	What are the SOA components Seattle City Light intends to implement, and what are the proposed dates for implementation?


	Seattle City Light intends to implement the following in the summer of 2010:

OSB Oracle Service Bus

BAM Business Activity Monitoring

BPEL Business Process Execution Language

OWSM Oracle Web Services Manager


	

	33
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	What is the City’s escrow agent preference?


	Iron Mountain is the City’s escrow agent. The vendor can propose to use their own agent. The vendor is responsible for escrow fees.


	

	34
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Who will provide space and hardware/software for the test environments?


	Seattle City Light will provide space and the vendor will provide hardware/software for the tests described in the AMI RFP.


	

	35
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	How should the vendor respond to MDM since there is no named MDM vendor?


	Seattle City Light has responded to MDM questions above regarding how MDM is addressed in the AMI RFP. Vendors are encouraged to describe and quantify their assumptions when proposing responses for MDM and AMI.


	

	36
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	What does second meter source refer to in the AMI RFP?
	Seattle City Light is interested in a second source for meter manufacturing.


	

	37
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	: Does Seattle City Light mean scheduled meter reads every 60 minutes as stated in the RFP?


	Yes.
	

	38
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	What is the background assumption for 35 days and 70 days?
	Currently Seattle City Light bills customers monthly (mostly commercial and downtown residential) and bi-monthly (mostly residential and some small commercial). Currently optical load profile meters store data for a maximum of 35 days before the date is overwritten. SCL expects of offer all residential and small commercial customers the opportunity to get their bills monthly with AMI. And, envisions offering all customers some flexibility on the day of the month bills are received with AMI.


	

	39
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	What does Seattle City Light want from vendors when responding to Section 3.3.22?


	Seattle City Light expects vendors to describe how their AMI solution will address each of the requirements in Section 3.3.22.


	

	40
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	What is the impact of NERC CIPS and Ami for Seattle City Light?
	NERC CIPS applies to load greater than or equal to 300 MW. AMI security is still a moving target for NIST requirements.


	

	41
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	How does Seattle City Light describe low latency/high speed?


	Seattle City Light has elected not to describe low latency/high speed in the AMI RFP. It expects vendors to submit what their solution does and Seattle City Light will choose the response that best meets its needs overall.


	

	42
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Who will issue purchase orders for vendor goods and services?


	The City’s Department of Executive Administration (DEA) will issue the purchase order to the successful AMI vendor.


	

	43
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Will WAN provisioning be a single solution?
	Seattle City Light envisions that last mile technology may vary, as a single communication solution may not be possible. 


	

	44
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Will Seattle City Light select and communicate the geographic area for the Phase I System Test before AMI RFP responses are due?


	Seattle City Light does not intend to select the geographic area for the Phase I System Test and to communicate it before AMI RFP responses are due. The area selected may depend on the successful AMI solution. It does intend to select a geographic area for the Phase I System Test that encompasses all customer classifications (residential, commercial and industrial) that is geographically contained, and intends to include 2 to 4 feeders to test the AMI communication solution across that distribution system as part of the Phase I System Test. 


	

	45
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Describe what Seattle City Light expects as the level of vendor support to Section 3.6.8.3 relative to response time?


	Seattle City Light expects vendors to be able to respond to outages within the times described in Section 3.6.8.3.


	

	46
	10/26/09
	11/11/09
	Are vendors expected to respond to questions on the imbedded spreadsheets even when the spreadsheets exceed the page limitation described in the AMI RFP?


	Vendors are expected to provide responses on the forms provided. Additional materials may be provided as an addendum to the vendor’s AMI RFP response. Seattle City Light is only obligated to consider responses on the forms provided.


	

	47
	11/05/09
	
	On page 59 of the RFP I notice a reference to a "City Non-Disclosure Request Form." Unfortunately, I cannot find the form as a part of the RFP. 

Would it be possible for you to send me a copy of this form so that we can review it?

	Please strike the reference to a non-disclosure form. Strike the following clause from page 59 of RFP SCL 2358.
“To do so, you must complete the City Non-Disclosure Request Form (“the Form”).  You should very clearly and specifically identify each record and the exemption(s) that may apply.  (If you are awarded a City contract, the same exemption designation will carry forward to the contract records.)”
	

	48
	
	11/12/09
	
	
	The new proposal due date and time is 12/21/2009 at 3 PM Pacific. The new deadline to submit questions is December 10th, 2009.
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